DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & ZONING
Beverly Walkup, Director of Planning
Phone (434) 246-1042

Fax (434) 246-2175
www.sussexcountyva.gov

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA
P. 0. BOX 1397 ~ 20135 PRINCETON ROAD
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884-0397

MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 27, 2024
TO: Sussex County Planning Commission
Cc: Michael Poarch

FROM: Beverly Walkup, Director of Planning

RE: December 2 Planning Commission Meeting — ISP Shooting Range and
Defensive Training Center Conditional Use Permit

On November 4, 2024, the Planning Commission voted to defer the decision for Conditional Use
Permit #2024-05 for more information as well as some modifications to the request for further
consideration. Planning staff has provided a summary draft set of meeting minutes from that
meeting. Based on the comments from the Commission, it was suggested that the applicant look
to address the following items:

Meet with local residents to address their concerns
To modify Sunday operation hours

Emergency access issues regarding Elm’s Lane
Address traffic concerns on Jolly Road

Access on Nary Lane

To address the modification of Condition #11

Attached you will find a copy of the original staff report from the November 4" public hearing,
staff (revised) recommended conditions and public comments received to date.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to call me in advance of the meeting at 434-246-
1042 or via email at bwalkup@sussexcountyva.gov.

Attachments:

Original Staff Report

Staff Revised Recommended CUP Conditions
Applicant’s comments/responses

Chief of Fire and Rescue response

Public Comments (received to date)

PC Summary Draft Minutes (November 4, 2024)

VVVVYVYY

“Rooted in the Past...Growing for the Future”



DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING
Beverly Walkup, Director of Planning
Phone (434) 246-1043

Fax (434) 246-2175

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA
P.0.BOX 1397 ~ 20135 PRINCETON ROAD
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884-0397
www.sussexcountyva.gov

Sussex County Planning Commission Meeting
Monday, December 2, 2024 at 6:00 P.M.
General District Courtroom at Sussex Judicial Center
15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex, VA 23884

Agenda

A. CALL TO ORDER
B. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. November 4, 2024

D. PUBLIC HEARING
a. None

E. OLD BUSINESS
a. Conditional Use Permit 2024-05, Henry Hayes, applicant

i. Discussion

ii. Action

F. NEW BUSINESS
a. None

G. ADJOURNMENT

“Good things are happening in Sussex County... Join Team Sussex!”



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2024-

STAFF REPORT
APPLICATION SUMMARY:
Project: ISP Shooting Range and Defensive Training Center
Location: The property is located on the north side of Nary Lane,
approximately 0.2 miles from the end of Jolly Road (Rt.
659)
Tax Parcel Number(s): 12-A-2
Proposal: Outdoor Shooting Range as a commercial business
Applicant: Henry Hayes
1206 Laskin Road Ste 140H
Virginia Beach, VA 23451
APPLICATION:

The applicant, Henry Hayes under CUP #2024-05 seeks a conditional use permit for a
shooting range on approximately 34 acres of land. The intent is to operate an outdoor
shooting range/training facility as a commercial business to be available to the public,
however, it will be membership based.

ELECTION DISTRICT:
Courthouse Election District
LOCATION:

The location for the proposed shooting range will be on Nary Lane (private road) which is
accessed off of Jolly Road (Rt.659) in Prince George, Virginia. The subject parcel is
located along the County line. To the north, there is mostly forested or timbered lands. To
the south, there is the Joseph Pines Preserve and a small dense residential neighborhood to
the far south off of Cabin Point Road. To the west, there is mostly forested areas. To the
east, the property is adjacent to some residences off of Elms Lane.

1|Page



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2024-

DESCRIPTION:

The purpose of this project is to provide a firearms and defensive training facility for local,
national military and law enforcement personnel, civilians, Sussex County and its residents
to increase their knowledge and readiness for emergency preparedness.

The facility intends to have specific types of uses and activities to occur on-site such as
rifle, pistol, shotgun, empty-hand defensive combat, dry-fire scenario training, medical
training, and verbal de-escalation training. Along with those uses and activities, the facility
will have ranges for a mid-range rifle, short-range rifle, and pistol which would be
constructed in accordance to NRA outdoor range design criteria. They also intend to offer
a dynamic shoot-house for simulation of dry-fire (no live ammo) training.

The facility will have a number of trained personnel for operations, safety oversight,
customer service, and maintenance. The hours of operation will vary depending on the
amount of daylight. The hours of operation would typically be 9:00 am to 6:00 pm for
Monday through Sunday. The applicant anticipates at least 60 people to come to the facility
on a regular basis from Monday through Friday for the first year of operation. However for
Year 2 and 3, the expectation is for at least 120 people on a regular basis from Monday
through Friday.

Access to the property is proposed from Jolly Road (Rt. 659) in Prince George County,
which serves approximately 20 or more existing residences. An existing twenty-foot
nonexclusive partially dirt/gravel easement provides access to the site from the terminus of
Jolly Road approximately 1,100 feet to the subject property. As it currently exists, staff is
of the opinion that the easement would need to be upgraded and weatherproofed to
accommodate two-way traffic, as well as emergency vehicle access.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW:

The current Comprehensive Plan future land use designation for this property is
Agricultural. The main purpose of this land use classification is to facilitate existing and
future farming operations, allow for expansion of farm related activity, reduce the effects
of soil erosion, and protect watersheds to promote the continuation of farming and forestry
as among the most important sectors of the economy. Within the small area plan, there are
also areas to the south and east of the property which have a future land use designation
for residential.

ORDINANCE REVIEW:

The current zoning designation for this property is A-1. The district is established to protect
land and property values, ground water and surface water quality, and other resources. The
intent is to provide for the continued security of the county’s agricultural sector by
encouraging the orderly and responsible growth of its livestock, dairy, and poultry industry.
Limited residential development is anticipated in these areas.



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2024-

The zoning district only allows this use through a CUP. If the CUP is granted, the applicant
will be required to submit a site plan for staff approval prior to construction of any new
site improvements, including any future building expansion.

STAFF CONCLUSIONS:

Strengths:

1.

The use provides an opportunity to bring a new business into the County.

2. Provides a recreational activity that can be consistent with the rural character of the
County as well as offer safety courses and educational programs for the community,
including specific sessions for children, teenagers, and adults.

3. Offers a well-trained expert staff with high level military experience

4. Provide a training facility for Sussex County Sheriff’s Department to utilize as well
as other law enforcement agencies and departments within the area. (See attached
comment letter from Sheriff Giles)

Weaknesses:

1. The use has the potential to create a noise impact as proposed with shooting to occur
completely outdoors.

2. Potential lead exposure to the environment.

3. The proposed location is less than 1 mile away from a cluster of residences.

4. The proposed facility will be accessed off an easement/private road not designed to

accommodate 2-way traffic and emergency vehicle access.

AGENCY/DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:

The application was forwarded to the following agencies/departments: VDOT, DCR, DEQ, DWR,
Sussex County Fire & Rescue, Sussex Sheriff’s Department, Prince George County

Administration, and Prince George County Planning Department. Comments received are noted

below:

¢ Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT):

1) A VDOT Land Use Permit would have to be obtained from the Richmond District for
the entrance.

2} A new commetcial entrance shall be constructed in accordance with VDOT Road Design
Manual Appendix F.

¢ Sussex Sheriff Department:

3|Page



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2024-

Sheriff Giles is in favor of this proposal/plans. This will help Sussex be recognized with
the right clientele and future potential business growth of individuals that are members
and affiliates of this organization.

¢ Department of Conservation and Recreation (DCR):

In summary, DCR does not anticipate that this project will adversely impact the natural
heritage resources and ecological cores.

o Department of Wildlife Resources (DWR):

In summary, DWR concerned about whether any in-stream work will take place. The
recommendation to avoid and minimize impacts to undisturbed forest, wetlands, and streams to
the fullest extent practicable.

e Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ):

In summary, DEQ provide a reference to the Environmental Protection Agency’s guidelines for
Best Management Practices for Lead Outdoor Shooting Range. They suggested that the new
shooting range may consider establishing its own Environmental Management System (EMS)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The staff recommends approval of the conditional use permit contingent with the following
conditions:

1. The hours of operation shall be 9:00 am to 6:00 pm for Monday through Sunday.

o Sunday (Opening-12 pm): Pistol use only; no big bore pistol rounds.

o All Days (Mon- Sun): Certain high-caliber rounds restricted except for
special-use permits granted for military or law enforcement training.

o Evening Training will be suppressed or 22 mm cartridge use only.

2. The applicant shall maintain an undisturbed natural buffer along the perimeter of
the property. The minimum width of undisturbed natural buffer shall be at least 150
feet around the entire perimeter of the property. The buffer shall be enhanced
and/or created where insufficient or non-existent.

3. The applicant shall install outdoor sound walls along the firing lines and boundaries
of the range to reduce noise levels.

4. Impact berms can be installed at a maximum height of 20 feet. The backstop shall
installed between 12 to 15 feet as shown on the conceptual site plan dated January
2024, to stop any misdirected rounds that may tend to travel slightly to one side or
the other either by accident or ricochet. A side berm shall be added onto each range
to provide for additional safety. Side berms shall be a minimum of 8 feet or higher.

5. All berms shall be free from rocks, stones or objects that may tend to increase the
possibility of ricochets.

6. The surface of the entire range shall be relatively clear of any objects, stones, or
excessive growth that may tend to enhance the possibility of ricochets, or create

4|Page



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2024-

10.

11.

12.
13.
14.

15.
16.

17.
18.

19.

20.

21.

bad footing conditions. The entire range shooting area shall be relatively flat and
level.

A line of target brackets or holders shall be placed on the target area. Materials
shall be designed so as not to create any ricochet hazard.

The target line shall be placed no more than 20 feet in from of the impact berm.
There shall be a space between each target bracket or holder, approximately equal
to the width of one target. The top of the targets, when attached to the brackets or
holder, should be approximately 6 feet off the ground and in a relatively straight
and level line.

The firing line shall be clearly marked on the ground surface across the entire width
of each firing range. The numbered distance shall be placed on both sides of each
firing line to indicate the distance from the firing line to the target.

There shall be an audible sound system to amplify voice commands. The sound
system shall enable the range officer to project loud and clear voice commands to
all shooters during actual shooting exercises. An adequate communications system
shall be established to allow all shooting officers, and other staff to communicate
with one another, and should be conveniently located to minimize the loss of time
between an emergency and the call for assistance. The system shall also be capable
of contacting the appropriate assistance in case of injuries or other unforeseen
emergencies.

Each shooting range will have a designated Range Safety Officer (RSO) to oversee
activity and ensure compliance with safety protocols. Each RSO will be equipped
with a radio for communication to the main office and range control. Flags will be
used to indicate when a range is in use, providing a clear visual cue for safety
purposes.

Adequate lighting shall be provided as determined by the Zoning Administrator.
A rest or break area shall be available in a location that is safe from any firing line.
A security fence shall be installed to keep other pedestrians and vehicles from
entering the shooting area while in use.

Adequate parking shall be provided as determined by the Zoning Administrator.
The range shall contain some form of storage shed or field office. The structure
shall be relatively secure for the storage of target materials.

Any future site or building improvements to the site will require site plan review.
The existing entrance that is proposed for use as the main entrance to the site shall
be improved to accommodate 2-way traffic and emergency vehicle access, and shall
meet the moderate volume commercial entrance design standard as shown in Figure
4-15 of Appendix F of the VDOT Road Design Manual.

A new commercial entrance permit shall be obtained by the applicant from the
Department of Transportation (Richmond District) for the entrance.

The applicant is required to provide an easement/road maintenance agreement with
other property owner(s) involved in the easement. The purpose of the agreement
would be to grant the applicant the right to make any necessary improvements in
addition to the maintenance of the easement.

The site shall provide a toilet facility for men and women, handwashing stations,
and potable water available for its employees prior to full operation.

S|Page



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2024-

22. Suitable access to the range site shall be provided for emergency vehicles.
Emergency personnel should be familiar with the access road(s) and location of the
range site. Additionally, emergency personnel shall be notified of the hours of
operation for the shooting range.

23. Implement best management practices for lead management and reclamation in
accordance with EPA guidelines.

24. The access from the public road shall have an unobstructed road surface at least 20
feet in width that provides all weather access to the facility. There shall also be an
unobstructed height requirement of 13° 6” so that apparatus can access the facility.
These clear measurements shall be preserved at all times. All weather access to any
building would be a paved or concrete surface.

ATTACHMENTS:

YVVVVVY

Application

Cover Letter

Property Description
Conceptual Plan

Letters of Support
Range Operations

State agencies comments

6|Page



To: Michael Poarch

From: Hank Hayes

Date: November 18, 2024

Subject: Follow-Up on November 4th Sussex County Meeting and Preparation for December
2nd Meeting

Dear Michael,

Thank you for your speed of execution and professionalism leading up to the November 4th,
2024, meeting and in every aspect of this project.

During the meeting, several topics were raised both by court attendees and in written statements.
Below, I’ve outlined the key points and our responses to ensure clarity ahead of the December
2nd meeting:

It was noted that Roy Osborn and Mark Formella made statements suggesting they reside on the
properties in question or have homes there. This is not accurate. Neither individual currently
resides on these properties; they simply aspire to build homes there in the future. This distinction
is important, as their statements created a misleading impression.

Three Brothers'
DistiltaryIng .
\ T n;wa;l;cb‘\l
Formel'a
-

ISP Shooting Range Jessica Ann'tlogre
4 Foundat:on
IS Shoolilg A 22271 Elms Ln G

Durection of seund s ) \.‘
—J7167 Elms Lane ?‘ ~—h

Joseph Pinas|
Presarve

" II
Colonial Hunt Club 2'-_:-?'00__Cab:n Point Rd

Steven Lapp, who owns a home at 221081 Elms Lane, and Bruce Powers, who resides at 22271
Elms Lane, were also mentioned. Their homes are closer to the Colonial Hunt Club Shooting
Range, which lacks sound-reducing design features, compared to the ISP Shooting Range and
Defensive Training Center. Our facility is specifically designed to minimize sound impact, which
is an important distinction and is a further distance than the Colonial Hunt Club.



Concerns were raised about the Joseph Swamp Bridge on Jolly Road being inadequate for
emergency vehicles. This is incorrect. The bridge, which is maintained by VDOT, is rated to
handle up to 66.20 metric tons and is inspected every 24 months, ensuring it meets all safety
standards for emergency use.

Traffic estimates for our facility at full capacity (anticipated in three years) indicate minimal road
use:

o  Weekdays (Mon—Fri): 60 people per day, equating to 1.2-2.5 cars per hour.
o Weekends (Sat—Sun): 120 people per day, or 3.2—4 cars per hour.

Given this minimal road use, we do not see the reasonable need for expanding the easement
access road at this time. However, we are open to expanding the road width or adding a turnout
for oncoming vehicles if future traffic demands warrant such measures.

The next topic was concerns about the adequacy of the 34+ acres not being adequate for a
shooting range. Comparatively, police department ranges with both rifle and pistol facilities
often operate on much smaller sites. Additionally, residences near these ranges are significantly
closer than the closest home to our proposed Sussex County location.

See exhibits 1, 2 and 3:

e Detroit Police Department shooting range, located at 9081-9499 Spinoza Drive, Detroit,
MI, is 1.26 acres

Acreage for DPD Sheating Range 1.26
;] acres

Perimeter
LaE] 998 ft

Area
LA 126 ac




» Norfolk Police Department shooting range, located at 1501 Pritchard Street, Norfolk,
VA, is 1.44 acres

Acrege for NPD Shooting Range

Perimeter
1092 fr

Area
o 144 ac

» Baltimore Police Shooting Range located at 24437 Hunter Ln, Ruther Glen, VA 22546
and is 5.46 Acres and the closest home is 904ft away.

¥ i (M Measure 8 C X

Click points on e map to measure d.stances ard
area

Perimeter
2,356 1

Area

$4%ac

Also, to address noise concerns, we propose the following restrictions:

» Sunday (Opening-12:00 PM): Pisto! use only; no big bore pistol rounds. Prohibited big
bore rounds include: .500 S&W Magnum, .50 Caliber, .500 Bushwhacker, .44 Magnum,
.327 Federal Magnum, .45-70 Government, .460 S&W.

s All Days (Mon—Sun): Certain high-caliber rounds restricted except for special-use
permits granted for military or law enforcement training. Examples of restricted rounds
include: .17 Incinerator, 20mm Vulcan, .577 Tyrannosaur, .950 JDJ, .405 Winchester,
and others listed in Exhibit A.



Lastly, we propose a modification to Staff Recommendation 11 to enhance safety:

¢ Each shooting range will have a designated Range Safety Officer (RSO) to oversee
activity and ensure compliance with safety protocols.

+ Each RSO will be equipped with a radio for communication with the main office and
range control.

s Flags will be used to indicate when a range is in use, providing a clear visual cue for
safety purposes.

We believe these points address the concerns raised at the November 4th meeting and provide
practical, safety-oriented solutions. Please let us know if further details or adjustments are
suggested or required before the December 2nd meeting.

Best regards,

Hank Hayes
hankh{@intuitivesp.com
610.442.5539

http:/fweww. intuitivesp.com




To: Sussex County Planning Commission
From: Mlhail Karlov
Date: November 15, 2024

To Whom It May Concern:

| am the ISP Shooting Range and Defense Training Center consultant and an expertin
public safety and fire code compliance.

My background includes a Bachelor of Science in Maritime Engineering and over 25 years
of public safety service, including firefighting operations, emergency medical services,
hazardous materials response, emergency management, and law enforcement duties. |
currently serve as an Assistant Fire Marshal and Fire Investigator in the City of Virginia
Beach and as an adjunct instructor with the Virginia Department of Fire Programs Fire
Marshals Academy.

In my role with the Fire Marshal’s Bureau, my responsibilities have included Fire Prevention
Code Inspector, Environmental Crimes Investigator, and Fire Investigator. As a Fire Code
Inspector, | have been trained in enforcing the Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code
(SFPC). In this capacity, | am assisting Hank Hayes by providing consulting services and
serving as a liaison with fire officials responsible for emergency responses to the site.

Please note, | am not acting on behalf of the City of Virginia Beach or any other agency but
am providing my knowledge, skills, and experience in a private consulting capacity.

Based on my expertise in fire safety and knowledge of the Virginia Statewide Fire
Prevention Code, | am providing the following recommendations for consideration before
any construction work at the proposed site near Jolly Road in Disputanta, Prince George
County, Virginia. These recommendations reflect minimum SFPC requirements and may
require further approval from the local Fire Chief or their designee.

This letter focuses on the fire department’s access to the site via existing routes.

The current site is an undeveloped, wooded area accessible via a private road reinforced
with gravel. These private roads connect the site to Virginia Department of Transportation
(VDOT)} maintained roads, including Jolly Road and Cabin Wood Road. The state and



county roads are paved and accessible for emergency apparatus. VDOT roadways are
suitable for fire department vehicles.

Joseph Swamp Bridge is located on Jolly Road and provides a crossing over a small creek.
The Joseph Swamp Bridge spans 28 feet in length with a 20-foot curb-to-curb roadway
width. According to the Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code, this meets the
requirements for fire apparatus road width.

The bridge operating rating is 66.20 metric tons load and resistance factor (LRFR}, which
equals 145,946 lbs. The bridge Inventory Rating is 50.80 metric tons LRFR, which translates
into 111,9994.8 Lbs. VDOT indicated that Joseph Swamp Bridge is rated for emergency
vehicles as:

EV2 GROSS WEIGHT 57.000; EV3 GROSS WEIGHT 65.000; EV2 single axle 33.000; EV3
single axle 23.000; EV3 tandem axle 47.000

The bridge is labeled with a green circle on the VDOT bridges and culverts map, indicating
no weight restrictions. It was reconstructed in 2016 and last inspected on August 22, 2023.

1. Access and Loading: Facilities and buildings shall be accessible to the fire
department apparatus by way of an approved fire apparatus access rcad. The road
must have an approved driving surface capable of supporting the imposed load of
the fire apparatus weighing at least 75,000 lbs {34,050 kg) or as determined by the
Fire Code official.

2. Minimum Clear Width: The fire department access roads must have a minimum
clear width of 20 feet (6,096 mm). Alternate designs may be approved on a case-by-
case basis. The Fire Code official may require modifications to the road's
configuration or width, or additional access roads, if access to any part of the site
could become compromised due to emergency operations or nearby natural or
manmade hazards (e.g., flood-prone areas, railway crossings, bridge failures,
hazardous materials-related incidents). The width of secondary access roads may
be reduced to less than 20 feet, provided that turnouts are installed adjacent to the
roadway, with a minimum dimension of 10 feet (3,048 mm) wide and 40 feet (12,192
mm) long or as otherwise determined by Fire Code Official. Minimum Clear Height:
Avertical clearance of 13'6” (4,115 mm) must be maintained over all required
vehicular access roads and driveways.

3. Grade: Fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 10% in grade, unless approval
is granted by the Fire Code official prior to construction.



4. Dead Ends: Dead-end fire apparatus access roads longer than 150 feet (45,720 mm)
shall be provided with width and turnaround provisions as determined by the Fire
Code official. Examples of possible turnaround configurations are shown in the
drawing below:

- G

- - 26'
28R "
. 20
28 = = Y 207
96’ DIAMETER 60-FOOT “v* MINIMUM CLEARANCE
CUL-DE-SAC ARQUND A FIRE
HYDRANT
B = a's - 60
]
¢ - 20 '}
20°R
YR
- |--25
ACCEPTABLE ALTERNATIVE
120" HAMMERHEAD TO 120° HAMMERHEAD

5. Turning Radius: The minimum turning radius for fire apparatus access roads shall be
determined by the Fire Code Official.

Enforcement of the SFPC ( Statewide Fire Prevention Code) is the option of the local
governments. The State Fire Marshal’s Office has the authority to enforce the SFPC in those
localities in which there is no local enforcement.

Emergency Response Resources Closest To The Site:

The nearest Fire Station is Prince George Volunteer Fire Station, Company 2 Located at
10000 County Drive, Disputanta, VA 23842. Disputanta responds to calls within the county
with the following apparatus: Engine 2, Engine 22, Jeep 2, Brush 2, Tanker 2, Rescue 2,
Utility 2 and Support 2.

In summary, | believe that the proposed construction site is suitable for the type of facility
that will be built from the emergency vehicles access standpoint. The private road will be
improved and used during the construction phase. Construction crews are likely to utilize
heavy trucks and equipment on the same roadways while delivering materials, building
parking areas and removing lumber from the site. During the construction, fire officials
typically preplan emergency responses to the area to determine the apparatus
accessibility, and resources needed, such as water supply, manpower, etc. There are
various strategies Fire Departments typically use to deliver water supply and to deploy
hose lines based on the manpower and vehicle inventory available in the area.



| am available to assist Hank Hayes in discussing SFPC requirements with local fire
cfficials as needed. Based on the construction plans reviewed, | believe the site can meet
Fire Department access requirements during and after construction.

Sincerely,
Mihail Karlov.
757-580-7629

mkarlov@icloud.com



Wiy MATSLLINESEQLE WEBE'T20uED Ty 0y ENGIVERT w0 [ apess
punos Jouon3ang (3
SuompaUp|
|2t Apsaaa no Buipeasds uet) Jauwges suonseip yioads Ui AR 10 pasnocg 3 ued Ay Baen sanem punos 1ey: yied aul Buideys A3 Aepaao paiur ®
-abue) Buncoys UB UG YINS ‘punds J6 JUBLAIEINGS 10 LODAsP
41 100U 01 PN 3 4RO LPIYW ‘Siueq BUISH PAANPAN JO PANICI] 3G ST UEI PUNOS Staued ULISG PUR SAINSOPUR TRLLILG PUNOS °f sovasov 3oNvs 33

sanem puncr i
DAP pur A0 dipy Asy1 yied jynads e Hudje sanem punos apinb 1ey) seqn] S0 sjuueyd padeys Aewads ase 35y SepInbaem 7

1130010 S13Mm0g 0L SARISID 1334 Ellp WA

VOMIRNP SYBAS € Ul PAIIAP 10 Jiod Sinads e 0} PISTD0) 3 UEY SIAZM PUNCS ‘s30BHNS paand ‘abre) Jo sadeys Brisn 003yl punos °| WS LTEE @
:PALAND 3q UED PUNOS SAem M) e ase Aol YBnos saen ) Aemuped i o leustew pue adeys au Bupionuod 4q suop s 9
PISNI0) 34 D Wibl| MOY O3 JejLS PRIDAUIP 3G UED PN

-

Aniadosd Byawed 0L SOURISIG 1394 BSTT WA

| LT o)

Ausdosd dde] 01 SBISP 1334 BS5E W,
sueTsw IO

abuey Butoous dsi

a6ue: Bunooys 41 ()

i B
“3[u € ey O) e
4 abiues xassng ds)
pRoey D 1101 4RG
@D (- Pty d
dpg spaL PRy Ml apg
b ¥20qpas; modams Y3 $i0og jo aumny sy) advys disH a0 diay 998 uoos Bupied s LA Sy Y3 boon MUy )b

‘M0]aq SaIpm3s punos paydesd pue suqiyxe ay) 29s asesld “JeU0I108Ip S| pUE SSAEM dnogeled u) S12AR11 puUnog ‘'seale papoom Ajasuap ou| pue
SBWOY 8y} WO ABME SI UONBIUSLIO SUROOUS 343 JBLY 910U 0] 1BJUSSSS S1 3| *U01}220] 98UBI Y} 0} 1S3SOJD SBWIOY BU1 JO S0UB)SIP U3 JO HIYX3 UE S| MO]ag

¥20Z ‘LE 190 31eqQ

Apmis punog —183ua2) Sujuiel] aaisuajeq pue aguey Sunooys dsi—- ALNNOD X3SSNS



G'G6
XV

CLG
DAY

5956
XN

vis
DAY

Sk

"90UR)S|P 139} pEP’ L 18 paunided elep punos aal

WT MLAELLSL H-SAIV.OE W LTA'E ‘e W O0a

EEO/LMLY-PLOGLT USROG woou O #Boon

eap o) easy Mea UL SIneD Tl

LLTEQLL'T

paiioy

€IFPCSOPL- |
ol -

LTISEs99E | : £ -l " - p ’ p SS—T
omuen - : i * B
2186200 F96'E / . s T L= ERT 3 g . T
-ty = -

1¥LBa800 09 LPLTPGEEOL
1w Bupesl

MBI BISLED

eBuniise Sty

il g
i

ooy

Apmis punes &

s [

00
NIW

*30UBIS|P 198} § 1B Painided e1ep puUNoS aAl

Apris punog W,

ofhuny Buoous (JaN 10 #h319y u

~)ad 10G) SBuRE 9309 A Y IOpON (S

= Bumy Buisous Qda «oy elescy m

" LGOUS AWLITORT BINIOY 1CIRT WA,

U ST LBITE WS 1394 SPOE WA,

U7 33 | LZTT SAURININ 1RG BIZE “why
WORD OOLZE Q1D WAM [KUaeD  (E
P JO uemIdINa (5

ABLaAD AR

0VIYOY IoNvy BR

1 B 91 SIURITIP 1394 TILE iy
uT s ITE

BISWITY O1 BDURIEIC 189 DSIT "Wy
LIPS ]

"Qud e 0L DIUSLERD 18y GESE Sy

—r— e e il

-]
oy PARY  MEA GG

sBug xa551% 43| ‘

‘eale papoom Ajasuap $S9) ANUEBILYILUEIS B Ul yoeag BILISIIA Ul paINoaXa SEMm APNIS pUNos AN Y



6€55'CPP0LY
woydssAMmuUI@Uyuey

saAeH JuUeH

H

‘syueyy

" B T R PO YA
n N T R R e L P L et
D80, " e g

auno ) susnuxioy pue ueswdopdasg) sfury yyN
I paSIDOD AJ|RTaIIm vey

saAey Ay

f eI G IR

sa211oe1d Apnls punos piepuels ayl Jo Jeyl
yum Suideaey ul aue Adselells pue snbiuyosel Sunsel ay] *1ZozZ Anr @ouls Juswdojaasp pue suocnelado aguel Ul yYN aUl AgQ paljiias usaqg aaey | ‘SUISo)d U|

‘Bale POPOOM
Kjasuap $s8)] B Ul aUOP SEM U2IYm ‘APNIsS punos ay) JO 2DUBISIP 8Y] 89IM] UEBL) 2J0WW S| X8SSNS U JUSPISB1 1S8S0]0 3yl 1ey] ajou o) Jueuoduw) os)e s13)

‘Bufje) JO 9SOU1 U] JOMO) 34. 189} pER* | I8 S1I0YSunS JNoj 8Y1 JO SPUNOS By} JBY) S1B1ISN]|| 01 |BIIUSSSS §1 3|

-(J319LW BU3 JO U0 U1 1994 Z 01 §° L Bunyjel sh ale s1oysuns ay3 Ja1je pue 2104aq 1YSU 298 NOA JuUBWaAcwW pue syead ayy)
J9100YS 8y} puiyaq 82UeSIp 1004~ L B WL SI0YSUNS Wwg Inoy aq pinom siyy pue ‘ydesd ay3 Jo pua 1ysis ay3 0} sxead aas noA s syl 03 ydess aus uj

-(J219W 91 JO U0 Ul 198y g Bupjel sn
2.k sjoysung ay) Jayk pue 210404 IYS1 995 NOA JUSLISACW pue sead aul) J2J004s BY] puUllaq aDUelS|p 10058 UB W o) S104SUNg WG JN0Y 2 PINOM 2IUM
‘ydeud ayy jo pua 1y syl 03 sxead 295 NOA ‘149] 2yt 03 Ydess ayl U] "JuUaLaAoLL aABMm Jnjoqeied Jo uosuedulod pue APnis punos e si aAcqe 995 NoA JeUM



11/25/24, 9.06 AM Mail - Michasl Poarch - Outlcok

u Outlook

Re: Questions: Access for EMS to proposed ISP Shooting Range and Defensive Training Facility

From Nick Sheffield <nsheffield@sussexcountyva.gov>
Date Thu 11/14/2024 4:17 PM

To  Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Cc  Beverly Walkup <bwalkup@sussexcountyva.gov>

Michael,

For this particular project, we would access the property via Elms Lane. The project is in Sussex and we would need
access from within the county to provide services, as the alternative rautes delay fire and EMS response. There
appear to be two points of access. One is off of Elms Lane and one is an unnamed access road that runs through 12-
A-4. | would suggest the Elms Lane access point since it would likely require less easements and is already an
established road in the system.

We do require an unobstructed road surface at least 20 feet wide that provides all weather access to the facility.
Furthermore, there would be an unobstructed height requirement of 13' 6" so that apparatus can access the facility.
These clear measurements shall be preserved at all times. All-weather access to any building would be a paved or
concrete surface. If this facility will not be utilizing buildings now or any time in the future, we might be willing to
discuss a variance for gravel as long as it is proven via geotechnical testing to be able to hold up to vehicular traffic of
75,000 pounds or greater in all weather conditions. This testing shall be done after the surface is laid so that the final
product is proven to work.

| will ride out to the facility tomorrow and take a look at the access points. | will follow up with you after doing so.

Thanks,

SR EATTT Nick Sheffield

7 ] Chief of Fire & Rescue
RIS

Phone: 434-632-1135

.,

3 Mobile: 804-691-2582

1 Email: nsheffield@sussexcountyva.gov

202ty ey

PO Box 1397
Sussex, VA 23884

From: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, November 6, 2024 5:13 PM

To: Nick Sheffield <nsheffield@sussexcountyva.gov>

Cc: Beverly Walkup <bwalkup@sussexcountyva.gov>

Subject: Questions; Access for EMS to proposed ISP Shooting Range and Defensive Training Facility

Good Afternoon,

I hope you are doing well. We had our Planning Commission meeting on Monday for ISP shooting range CUP
application. The application was deferred for further information and/or changes. However, | had some questions for

https:/foutlock.office.com/maillid/AAQKAGI20 TeSOTAILTNJOGItNDRKMI04 YTMyLWU3OTIwYzc3MTgxNwAQABWzb0TsR21Jiw342PBqRYA%3D

12



11125124, 9:06 AM Mail - Michael Poarch - Outlook
you:

* How much road width you will be needed to accommodate access for EMS vehicles? Please note that Nary
Lane is approximately 20 feet or less in width.

+ There was concern about EMS having to access Eims Lane in order to get to the project in the case of an
emergency. Based on your experience, how would EMS access this property? Would it be from Elms Lane or
Jolly Road. Please note that the property has only one legal access from Jolly Road onto Nary Lane.

Please see the attached map for your reference. The red pinpoint is the end of the lolly Road (state maintained road).

The red dot line is the access along Nary Ln (private road/easement) to the property. The solid red line outlines the
boundaries of the property. If you have any questions, please let me know.

Sincerely,

M. Poarch
County Planner
Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department

hitps:/outlook.office.com/mailfid/AAQKAGI20TeSOTILTNJOGHRNDRKMIO4YTMyLWU3OTIwYze3MTgxNwAQABWzb0TsR2|Jiw342PBqRYA%3D

212



117277124, 10:47 AM Mail - Michael Poarch - Qutlook

ﬂ Outlook

Shooting club

From Roy Orsborne <rorsborne@firetechva.com>
Date Wed 11/27/2024 10:42 AM
To  Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>

You don't often get email from rorsborne@firetechva.com. Learn why this is important

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not folow guidance, click links, or open attachments unless
you know the content is safe.

| want to start with telling to have a happy and safe thanksgiving.

| was sent a recording of the November meeting and it proves the nether Mark or | stated that or alluded that we
have residence on our properties.

This shows to the character a Mr. Hayes. As he stated to you.

I hope Mr Hayes if approved will offer to the surrounding county's free range time. If not, it makes it look like the
sheriff of Sussex County did prit pro quo. for his endorsement.

Again | what to wish you and your family a happy thanksgiving, and we'll see y'all on december second

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Get Qutlook for Android

https:/foutlook.office.com/mail/inkoxAd/AAQKAGI2ZOTe SO TAILTNJOG INDRKMi04 Y TMyLWU3OTIwYzc3MTgxNwAQADYUOd%2FkwKVJg1ThORy3aKE... 111



11/25/24, 9:05 AM Mail - Michasl Poarch - Outlook

fﬂ Outlook

Fw: ISP Shooting range

From Roy Orsborne <rorsborne@firetechva.com>
Date Fri 11/22/2024 12:15 PM
To  Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>

You don't often get email from rorsborne@firetechva.com. Learn why this is important

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not follow guidance, click links, or open attachments unless
you know the content is safe.

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphcne

Get Qutlook for Android

From: Roy Orsborne <rorsborne@firetechva.com>

Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2024 1:19:49 PM

To: mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Subject: Fw: ISP Shooting range

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Get Outlook for Android

From: Roy Orsborne

Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2024 12:56:06 PM

To: mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Subject: ISP Shooting range

Mr Poarch

| want to start with Mr Hayes saying that Mr Foremella and | saying that we have houses on our properties, this a
flat lie.

Secondly | don't understand how Mr Thompson can deed, an access across my land that he does not own.

My property is directly against the proposed gun range , and | have plans to build on this property, which will be
vastly impacted if this gun range goes through.

Sussex County has already approved a gun range on route 460 near Sussex sporting club that is more conducive
unless disruptive to everyone and give the sheriff's department, a place to shoot.

Bye, approving this property to be zoned commercial will heavily impact my ability to do anything with my
property,as it's zoned agricultural.

| was never contacted till prior to the November 4th meeting. That is what's going to be an issue.

If there is talk about expanding the easement through my property i will fight it to the full extent.

My tax parcel is 600 - 0A - 013 - 0.

My full name is

Roy A Orsborne

757-647-2474

rorshorne@firetechva.com

https:/outiook.office.com/mailfinbox/id/AAQKAGIZOTeSOTdILTNJOGIINDRkMiO4YTMyLWUIO TIwYzc3MTgxNwAQALvwWDUoXW2dBKU3IIRIV2S51%3D



11/25/24, 9:05 AM Mail - Michael Poarch - Outlook

| was informed that there was a similar shooting. Club on route thirty five in sussex county that y'all had
shut downSent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook for Android

hitps:/foutlook.office.com/mailfinbox/id/AAQKAGI20 TeSOTAILTNJOGIRNDRKMIO4Y TMyLWU 3O TIwY ze3MTaxNwAQALwWDUoXW2dBKUSIRIV2SI%3D 2z



11/25/24, 9:06 AM Mail - Michael Poarch - Qutlook

ﬂ Outlook

Re: Request: ISP Shooting Range and Defensive Training Facility application and report

From Mark Formella <markformella@gmail.com>

Date Thu 11/21/2024 8:37 AM

To  Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Cc  Beverly Walkup <bwalkup@sussexcountyva.gov>

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization, Do not follow guidance, click links, or open attachments unless
you know the content is safe.

Good Morning Michael,
Thank you for forwarding the ISP shooting range application and additional correspondence from Hank Hayes.

In Mr Hayes written response to concerns raised at the public hearing on November 4, he stated Roy Orsborne and
I claimed to reside on our land beside the range. Neither of us made such a statement. To indicate that we did is
either a careless error or outright dishonest attempt to discredit our statements. In either case, this is anot a
positive reflection on Mr Hayes character or the way he intends to operate the ISP range. In Luke 16:10-14 it reads,
"whoever is dishonest in little things will be dishonest in big things too”.

In addition, several members of the planning commission expressed a desire for Mr Hayes to work with the
surrounding land owners to come up with an amicable compromise. To date, Mr Hayes has not reached out to
myself, Steve Lapp or Bruce Powers. Mr Orsborne initiated contact with Mr Hayes. | do not know what they may
have discussed.

| assume Mr Hayes letter will be sent to the planning commission for their consideration. | respectfully request my
rebuttal be included as well.

Thank you again for your assistance.
Mark J. Formella

102 Winchester Pl

Smithfield, VA 23430

(757) 239-9182

On Wed, Nov 20, 2024, 5:01 PM Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov> wrote:
Good Afternoon,

Please see attached staff report and recommended conditions along with follow up letter that addressed
comments from the November meeting. Please note that the some of the recommended conditions from the

November will be revised or added on. if you need anything else, please let us know.

In addition, please see the most up-to-date electronic link to the CUP application for your reference.

Updated CUP application ISP shooting range 4.zip

Sincerely,

https:#foutlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/ AAQKAGI20TeSOTILTNjOGINDRKMi04 Y TMyLWU3OTIwYZe3MTgxNwAQAAjwB33ii9FAvwSpYU1K)j59%3D

[



11/25/24, 9.06 AM Mail - Michael Poarch - Outlook

M. Poarch
County Planner
Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department

https:/foutlook.office.com/mailfinbox/id/AAQKAGIZOTeSOTAILTNJOGIINDRKMi04Y TMyLWU3OTIwYze3MTgxNwAQAAjwB33ii9F AvwEpYu 1Kj5g%3D 212



Minutes of the

SUSSEX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

Monday, November 4, 2024 at 6:00 P. M.
General District Courtroom- Sussex Judicial Center
15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex, VA 23884

PLANNING COMMISSIONERS PRESENT
Terry Massenburg, Chair

J. Lafayette Edmond, Vice Chair
Dennis P. Mason
Rudolph Shands

Kevin Bracy
Andrew Mayes
Elena Grinstead

PLANNING COMMISSIONERS ABSENT
Roger King

STAFF PRESENT
Michael Poarch, County Planner

CALL TO ORDER:

COMMISSIONER MASSENBURG, calied the Planning Commission Meeting to order at 6:02

p.m.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA
MOTION OF COMMISSIONER EDMOND and seconded by COMMISSIONER SHANDS:

RESOLVED that the agenda be approved for the November 4, 2024 meeting as presented.
Voting aye: Commissioners Massenburg, Edmond, Shands, Bracy, Grinstead, Mason, and
Mayes

(7-0)

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

None



PUBLIC HEARING

MOTION OF COMMISSIONER MASON and seconded by COMMISSIONER EDMOND:
RESOLVED that the meeting enters into public hearing.

Voting aye: Commissioners Massenburg, Edmond, Shands, Bracy, Grinstead, Mason, and
Mayes

(7-0)

ENTER PUBLIC HEARING for Conditional Use Permit #2024-05, Henry Hayes, applicant
1) STAFF PRESENTATION

Michael Poarch, County Planner, presented a staff presentation which briefly summarized the
application and information within the staff report. Mr. Hayes, Mr. Jones, and Kevin
(representatives for the application) explained their background including experience in
training military and local law enforcement personnel, the need for this proposal, as well as
addressing concerns with an emphasis on safety for the community and wildlife, being a good
neighbor, and being a contributor within the community. This range is designed to reduce
sound as much as possible through redirecting and mitigating sound waves. They also noted
that an enhance Range Safety Officer Program that has three major pillars: Experienced

leadership, Emergency Medical Training, and Communication.

STAFF REPORT
APPLICATION SUMMARY:
Project: ISP Shooting Range and Defensive Training Center
Location: The property is located on the north side of Nary Lane,
approximately 0.2 miles from the end of Jolly Road (Rt.
659)
Tax Parcel Number(s): 12-A-2
Proposal: QOutdoor Shooting Range as a commercial business
Applicant: Henry Hayes

1206 Laskin Road Ste 140H
Virginia Beach, VA 23451



APPLICATION:

The applicant, Henry Hayes under CUP #2024-05 seeks a conditional use permit for a
shooting range on approximately 34 acres of land. The intent is to operate an outdoor
shooting range/training facility as a commercial business to be available to the public,
however, it will be membership based.

ELECTION DISTRICT:
Courthouse Election District
LOCATION:

The location for the proposed shooting range will be on Nary Lane (private road) which
is accessed off of Jolly Road (Rt.659) in Prince George, Virginia. The subject parcel is
located along the County line. To the north, there is mostly forested or timbered lands.
To the south, there is the Joseph Pines Preserve and a small dense residential
neighborhood to the far south off of Cabin Point Road. To the west, there is mostly
forested areas. To the east, the property is adjacent to some residences off of Elms Lane.

DESCRIPTION:

The purpose of this project is to provide a firearms and defensive training facility for
local, national military and law enforcement personnel, civilians, Sussex County and its
residents to increase their knowledge and readiness for emergency preparedness.

The facility intends to have specific types of uses and activities to occur on-site such as
rifle, pistol, shotgun, empty-hand defensive combat, dry-fire scenario training, medical
training, and verbal de-escalation training. Along with those uses and activities, the
facility will have ranges for a mid-range rifle, short-range rifle, and pistol which would
be constructed in accordance to NRA outdoor range design criteria. They also intend to
offer a dynamic shoot-house for simulation of dry-fire (no live ammo) training.

The facility will have a number of trained personnel for operations, safety oversight,
customer service, and maintenance. The hours of operation will vary depending on the
amount of daylight. The hours of operation would typically be 9:00 am to 6:00 pm for
Monday through Sunday. The applicant anticipates at least 60 people to come to the
facility on a regular basis from Monday through Friday for the first year of operation.
However for Year 2 and 3, the expectation is for at least 120 people on a regular basis
from Monday through Friday.

Access to the property is proposed from Jolly Road (Rt. 659) in Prince George County,
which serves approximately 20 or more existing residences. An existing twenty-foot
nonexclusive partially dirt/gravel easement provides access to the site from the terminus
of Jolly Road approximately 1,100 feet to the subject property. As it currently exists,

3



staff is of the opinion that the easement would need to be upgraded and weatherproofed
to accommodate two-way traffic, as well as emergency vehicle access.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW:

The current Comprehensive Plan future land use designation for this property is
Agricultural. The main purpose of this land use classification is to facilitate existing and
future farming operations, allow for expansion of farm related activity, reduce the
effects of soil erosion, and protect watersheds to promote the continuation of farming
and forestry as among the most important sectors of the economy. Within the small area
plan, there are also areas to the south and east of the property which have a future land
use designation for residential.

ORDINANCE REVIEW:

The current zoning designation for this property is A-1. The district is established to
protect land and property values, ground water and surface water quality, and other
resources. The intent is to provide for the continued security of the county’s agricultural
sector by encouraging the orderly and responsible growth of its livestock, dairy, and
poultry industry. Limited residential development is anticipated in these areas.

The zoning district only allows this use through a CUP. If the CUP is granted, the
applicant will be required to submit a site plan for staff approval prior to construction
of any new site improvements, including any future building expansion.

STAFF CONCLUSIONS:

Strengths:

1. The use provides an opportunity to bring a new business into the County.

2. Provides a recreational activity that can be consistent with the rural character of

the County as well as offer safety courses and educational programs for the

community, including specific sessions for children, teenagers, and adults.

Offers a well-trained expert staff with high level military experience

4. Provide a training facility for Sussex County Sheriff’s Department to utilize as
well as other law enforcement agencies and departments within the area. (See
attached comment letter from Sheriff Giles)

(P8

Weaknesses:

1. The use has the potential 1o create a noise impact as proposed with shooting to
occur completely outdoors.

2. Potential lead exposure to the environment.

3. The proposed location is less than 1 mile away from a cluster of residences.



4. The proposed facility will be accessed off an easement/private road not designed
to accommodate 2-way traffic and emergency vehicle access.

AGENCY/DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:

The application was forwarded to the following agencies/departments: VDOT, DCR, DEQ,
DWR, Sussex County Fire & Rescue, Sussex Sherift’s Department, Prince George County
Administration, and Prince George County Planning Department. Comments received are
noted below:

e Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT):

1) A VDOT Land Use Permit would have to be obtained from the Richmond District
for the entrance.

2) A new commercial entrance shall be constructed in accordance with VDOT Road
Design Manual Appendix F.

e Sussex Sheriff Department:

Sheriff Giles is in favor of this proposal/plans. This will help Sussex be recognized
with the right clientele and future potential business growth of individuals that are
members and affiliates of this organization,

o Department of Conservation and Recreation (DCR):

In summary, DCR does not anticipate that this project will adversely impact the natural
heritage resources and ecological cores.

¢ Department of Wildlife Resources (DWR):

In summary, DWR concerned about whether any in-stream work will take place. The
recommendation to avoid and minimize impacts to undisturbed forest, wetlands, and
streams to the fullest extent practicable.

o Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ):

In summary, DEQ provide a reference to the Environmental Protection Agency’s
guidelines for Best Management Practices for Lead Outdoor Shooting Range. They
suggested that the new shooting range may consider establishing its own Environmental
Management System (EMS)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The staff recommends approval of the conditional use permit contingent with the
following conditions:
1. The hours of operation shall be 9:00 am to 6:00 pm for Monday through Sunday.



10.

11.

12.
13.

The applicant shall maintain an undisturbed natural buffer along the perimeter
of the property. The minimum width of undisturbed natural buffer shall be at
least 150 feet around the entire perimeter of the property. The buffer shall be
enhanced and/or created where insufficient or non-existent.

The applicant shall install outdoor sound walls along the firing lines and
boundaries of the range to reduce noise levels.

Impact berms can be installed at a maximum height of 20 feet. The backstop
shall installed between 12 to 15 feet as shown on the conceptual site plan dated
January 2024, to stop any misdirected rounds that may tend to travel slightly to
one side or the other either by accident or ricochet. A side berm shall be added
onto each range to provide for additional safety. Side berms shall be a minimum
of 8 feet or higher.

All berms shall be free from rocks, stones or objects that may tend to increase
the possibility of ricochets.

The surface of the entire range shall be relatively clear of any objects, stones, or
excessive growth that may tend to enhance the possibility of ricochets, or create
bad footing conditions. The entire range shooting area shall be relatively flat
and level.

A line of target brackets or holders shall be placed on the target area. Materials
shall be designed so as not to create any ricochet hazard.

The target line shall be placed no more than 20 feet in from of the impact berm.
There shall be a space between each target bracket or holder, approximately
equal to the width of one target. The top of the targets, when attached to the
brackets or holder, should be approximately 6 feet off the ground and in a
relatively straight and level line.

The firing line shall be clearly marked on the ground surface across the entire
width of each firing range. The numbered distance shall be placed on both sides
of each firing line to indicate the distance from the firing line to the target.
There shall be an audible sound system to amplify voice commands. The sound
system shall enable the range officer to project loud and clear voice commands
to all shooters during actual shooting exercises. An adequate communications
system shall be established to allow all shooting officers, and other staff to
communicate with one another, and should be conveniently located to minimize
the loss of time between an emergency and the call for assistance. The system
shall also be capable of contacting the appropriate assistance in case of injuries
or other unforeseen emergencies.

A control tower shall be placed at the center point of the range, approximately
15 to 20 yards behind the farthest firing line, and provide the range office with
a clear unobstructed view of all shooters and the range personnel. The floor
decking shall be at least 6’higher than the ground. A flag pole, for displaying a
red flag or banner whenever the range is in use, shall be installed close to or
attached directly to the control tower. The top of this pole should be at least 26’
higher than ground level. The flag or banner should be large enough to be
conspicuously viewed from any location in the range area.

Adequate lighting shall be provided as determined by the Zoning Administrator.
A rest or break area shall be available in a location that is safe from any firing
line.



14. A security fence shall be installed to keep other pedestrians and vehicles from
entering the shooting area while in use.

15. Adequate parking shall be provided as determined by the Zoning Administrator.

16. The range shall contain some form of storage shed or field office. The structure
shall be relatively secure for the storage of target materials.

17. Any future site or building improvements to the site will require site plan review.

18. The existing entrance that is proposed for use as the main entrance to the site
shall be improved to accommodate 2-way traffic and emergency vehicle access,
and shall meet the moderate volume commercial entrance design standard as
shown in Figure 4-15 of Appendix F of the VDOT Road Design Manual.

19. A new commercial entrance permit shall be obtained by the applicant from the
Department of Transportation (Richmond District) for the entrance.

20. The applicant is required to provide an easement/road maintenance agreement
with other property owner(s) involved in the easement. The purpose of the
agreement would be to grant the applicant the right to make any necessary
improvements in addition to the maintenance of the easement.

21. The site shall provide a toilet facility for men and women, handwashing stations,
and potable water available for its employees prior to full operation.

22. Suitable access to the range site shall be provided for emergency vehicles.
Emergency personnel should be familiar with the access road(s) and location of
the range site. Additionally, emergency personnel shall be notified of the hours
of operation for the shooting range.

23. Implement best management practices for lead management and reclamation in
accordance with EPA guidelines.

24. The access from the public road shall be constructed of a paved surface adequate
for 2 lane traffic and accessible via emergency service vehicles.

Questions/Concerns from the Commission:

How long you have been associated with the National Rifle Association (NRA)? How
many people have contacted you with concerns of noise in the community? Applicant
stated that he met with Dr. Cupp and Leroy Thompson in regards to the range. He has
been certified with the NRA for about 15 years now across multiple platforms,
however, specifically in shooting range design.

How many people would be coming to the range? There are six designated ranges
which has a limitation on how many people can be on the range at a given time.
Limitation on each range location on how people can shot at an time. The number of
people would differ depending on the range. Max capacity on a very busy day is 120

people in one day period; 1 hour per shooter; per lane.



Hours of Operation? Applicant stated that it will be 3am to 6 pm (7 days a week) along
with specialized training in the evenings which would be suppressed or 22 mm
cartridge use only.

Do you believe this range will do a lot for Sussex County, Sheriff Department and other
local law enforcement department? Applicant stated that it will do a lot for Sussex
County. The applicant would provide free use of the range as well as training to Sussex
Sheriff Department. On his team, he has the first of Navy Seal Team 6 on his Board
which is looking to film a season of TV show, Surviving Man, at the proposed range.
However, the residents are the most important here. We embrace the residents and
any concerns. We want to be a part of the community and not a nuisance. We take it
very serious with being a good neighbor. We have a reserve fund to address any
needed improvements in order to make the facility run better for the community.
Will the facility be enclosed? The question in regards for the hunter’s right to retrieve
dogs. Applicant responses that there will be Range Safety Officers on site. If they spot
something coming into the range, they will order a ceasefire immediately. For Phase
1, we will establish a soft perimeter. Then, we will fence in the property for Phase 2.
Why did you decide to talk to Dr. Cupp? Applicant stated that he forgot who instructed
him, but it was noted that Dr. Cupp was a big part and long standing member of this
community. We reached out to him to discuss our objectives and plans for the range.
Do you have other facilities that show how property values are affected? Applicant
stated that 85% of businesses go out of business due to mismanagement. We been in
business for 26 years. Unfortunately, a lot of ranges fall into that category due to not
listening and playing nice with the community. We have a flawless safety record at
97%. As the CEO, I'm stickler about safety and business practices. The safety of the
community is a high priority for us.

What other place do you have a range? Applicant stated our goal is to merge and
acquire other range facilities. However, this will be our first facility. We usually utilize
PMI.

How many RSO(s) will be at each range? Applicant stated that it will be a 12 person

limitation on the range, however, it will depend on skill of the shooters. We usually
8



do an Alpha and a bravo group which would determine the type of firing. We have a
one strike you out palicy regards to safety.

Can Sussex citizens or surrounding counties participate? Applicant stated that citizens
are welcomed, however, they will have to go through a background check and do the
required training. Sussex County citizens would receive a discount for their
membership.

What other financial contribution will there be? Applicant noted that we are big on
education and training to the youth along with a voluntary contribution of $500 to the
County. Mr. Poarch noted that any contribution given by the applicant is voluntary.
Any contribution cannot be considered as part of this land use case.

What is the projected cost to build this facility? Applicant stated that it will about
$800,000.

If ’'m at home Sunday morning asieep, the range starts shooting at 6 am and I’'m the
nearest house. Will | be able to hear it or wake up? Applicant noted that you would
not hear a pistol, however, you may hear a rifle.

Are you willing to abide by the recommended conditions? Applicant noted that he
doesn’t agree with the need of a control tower. The applicant stated that they have
RSO(s) on site at each range at all times.

Noise specifically the type of weapons fired at a given time (multiple ranges being
active at the same time) Applicant noted that the range does not plan on having the
use of automatic weapons. The type of weapons that would be used are pistols such
as 9 mm, 38, and 40. For the rifles, they could use a 22, 255, and 556. For big bore
rounds, we see a 308, 6.5, 6 maxx, and shotgun.

Which condition did you have a problem with? Applicant noted Condition 11 stated
that a control tower will not work with this site layout due to limited visibility. They
chose this site due to the existing aesthetic (dense vegetation) and just carving out
certain areas.

Suggested that the facility opens at the 12 pm on Sunday. Applicant would be happy

to change the time for Sunday.



Public Comments:

e Ross Osborne, adjacent property owner, in opposition of the project due to narrow
lot, narrow access, commercial use within an agricultural area, safety, and liability.

e Mark Formella, adjacent property owner 12-2-6 and 12-3-C, in opposition of the
project due to the size being under 100 acres, plan to build dream home and
proximity to a residential neighborhood.

e Steven Lapp, resident of 2181 Elms Lane, in opposition of the project due to noise
{shooting and commands), the use of Elms Lane for emergency access, and effect
on property values.

e Carl Cabaniss, Prince George resident, in opposition of the project due to potential
impact on wildlife near Joseph Swamp, and the proximity to residences.

MOTION TO CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING:
ON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER MASON and seconded by COMMISSIONER BRACY: to close
the public hearing for Conditional Use Permit Application #2024-05.

Commission’s Action on Conditional Use Permit #2024-05, Henry Hayes, applicant

ON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER BRACY, seconded by COMMISSIONER MAYES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Planning Commission will defer Conditional Use Permit Application
#2024-05, to the next Planning Commission meeting for further information as well as some

modifications to the request for consideration:

Voting aye: Commissioners Massenburg, Edmond, Bracy, Shands, Grinstead, Mason, and
Mayes (7-0)

OLD BUSINESS

None

NEW BUSINESS

None

ADJOURNMENT — The meeting adjourned at 8:06 P. M.

10



ON THE MOTION OF COMMISSIONER EDMOND, seconded by COMMISSIONER MASON and
carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Planning Commission is hereby adjourned.
Voting aye: Commissioners Massenburg, Edmond, Bracy, Grinstead, Mason, Mayes, and

Shands (7-0)

Submitted by: Michael Poarch
Approved by PC:

11



